NATIONAL MUSEUM 
PALACE OF THE GRAND DUKES OF LITHUANIA
Audio guide text 
(0) Introduction 
Dear visitors,
We welcome you to the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania. We are glad that you have accepted our invitation to open up the past to the future.
The palace began to flourish 400 years ago, but, alas, was destroyed 200 years ago. Today, it has been rebuilt, and once again we hope that it will become a symbol of Lithuania’s long‑lived statehood, of its glorious history as one of the most influential European states in early modern Europe. All of this is told through the expositions in the palace museum, which opened its doors to the public in 2013.
The first tour route reveals the development of the residence of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania in an historical context – from ancient times to the current reconstruction of the palace. The most valuable part of this exposition are the authentic ruins in the cellars and the unique archaeological finds displayed there. In all, over 300,000 artifacts have been unearthed over two decades of archaeological research. Like a “Lithuanian Pompeii”, they make us rethink and re‑imagine the history of Lithuania and its heritage.
The second tour route guides us through the evolution of the different stylistic eras of the palace and the historical functions of the various rooms. We hope to capture the spirit of palace life and the functioning of the state. Please enjoy your walk through the recreated interiors representing various historical eras – the late Gothic, Renaissance and early Baroque – and the treasures of applied and fine arts associated with them.
Our audio guide will help you navigate these two routes. It presents 30 of the most interesting exhibits in the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania. We hope that this tour will intrigue and interest you. Should you have any questions, look for the museum workers. They will always be nearby and happy to help you.
We wish you an unforgettable experience! Let’s open up the past to the future and enjoy the experience!
(00) A Short History of the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania
Before describing specific museum exhibits, we would like to introduce you to a short history of the palace.
Archaeological research indicates that the first residents in the territory of Vilnius Lower Castle settled here during the first millennium A.D. Undoubtedly, there was a settlement here during the 5th–8th centuries. During the late 13th century, in the location of the later palace, an early brick castle was built, which was the first and the only one of its kind in former ethnic Lithuania. The defensive walls, towers, and remains of some of the buildings can still be seen today in the entrance hall under the courtyard and in the cellars of the palace. This palace residence is witness to the establishment of the Lithuanian State and the Gediminid dynasty. During the 14th and 15th centuries, the Grand Dukes, residing in the capital of Lithuania, stayed both at the Lower and the Upper castles. The castles gradually acquired brick walls and Gothic features.
It is known that the Grand Duke of Lithuania, Vytautas the Great, resided in the Lower Castle. He planned to have his coronation as the King of Lithuania in Vilnius. The Vilnius castles were supposed to highlight the grandeur of the medieval Lithuanian state, stretching from the Baltic to the Black Seas, as well as the exceptional status of its ruler. The castles of Vilnius were also often the home of the successors of Vytautas – the Grand Dukes of Lithuania and Kings of Poland, Casimir Jagiellon and his son Alexander, who notably expanded the residence.

In the early 16th century, the Renaissance reconstruction of the palace was begun by the Grand Duke of Lithuania and King of Poland, Sigismund the Old. The development of the residence was undoubtedly influenced by his wife, the Italian duchess Bona Sforza. She sought to turn the palace of Vilnius into a modern representational residence of the Gediminid‑Jagiellonian dynasty. Thanks to Bona Sforza, the palace was decorated by Italian craftsmen, and Italian artists played an important part in its cultural life as well.

Sigismund Augustus, the son of Sigismund the Old and Bona Sforza, who factually ruled Lithuania from 1544, began new palace development initiatives. He built what came to be called the “New Palace” and formed the closed inner courtyard. In the early 17th century, the rulers of Lithuania and Poland from the Swedish Vasa dynasty paid great attention to the Vilnius residence. Sigismund and Ladislaus Vasa remodelled the palace in the style of Northern European Mannerism and later – early Italian Baroque. 
The 16th and the early 17th centuries were a period of prosperity for the palace. Famous craftsmen from Italy and other countries helped build and decorate the palace. Legations from the Apostolic See, the Holy Roman Empire, Moscow, Hungary, Turkey, Persia, France, Spain, Venice and many other countries were received here. This was a place for the dynastic politics of the last of the Jagiellonians and the Vasas. The Council of Lords and the Parliament of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania met here. The Statutes of Lithuania (the code of laws of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania) were compiled and edited here. The Lithuanian Metrica (chancellery records of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania) was kept here, as well as the treasuries of Lithuania’s rulers and of the Grand Duchy.


Sigismund Augustus himself had accumulated a large library, impressive collections of tapestries, weapons, armour, pictures and hunting trophies. The treasury of the palace and its valuables greatly impressed even the envoy of the Pope Pius IV Bernardino Buongiovanni. The palace was the setting for the romantic and tragic love story of Sigismund Augustus and his second wife Barbara Radziwiłł. The gorgeous residence, which was surrounded by a picturesque park, became a centre for the dissemination of Baroque culture and art not only in the Grand Duchy of Lithuania, but also throughout Eastern and Northern Europe. Here, earlier than in London or Paris, the first operas were staged.

The prosperity of the palace of Vilnius ended in 1655, when the capital of Lithuania was captured by the Muscovite and Cossack armies. The siege, plundering, and destruction of the Vilnius castles lasted for six years. Later, due to the deplorable condition of the state treasury, it was impossible to reconstruct the destroyed palace. After the last partition of the Polish–Lithuanian Commonwealth in 1795, when Lithuania became a part of the Russian Empire, the Russian administration deliberately destroyed the symbols of Lithuanian statehood and made sure that the remains of the palace were demolished. 

Systematic archaeological investigation of the palace began only in 1987, and coincided with the Lithuanian liberation movement. The digs yielded hundreds of thousands of valuable finds. In 2000–2001 the Lithuanian Parliament and the Government of the Republic of Lithuania adopted resolutions regarding the reconstruction of the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania in Vilnius Lower Castle. Reconstruction of the palace was perceived as the return of a symbol of Lithuanian sovereignty, important for the national identity and historical memory. The reconstruction of the palace is an expression of contemporary Lithuania’s approach to its historical tradition and concern for its cultural heritage.

This audio guide will help you traverse the exhibition spaces of the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania. We will start with the exhibits from the archaeological finds that were discovered during the exploration of the palace grounds. They are marked with the audio guide numbers 1 to 16. Other exhibits presented were acquired for the reconstructed historical interiors of the palace. They are marked with the audio guide numbers 17 to 30.

In the entrance hall and the first three exhibition halls you can see the ruins of the 13th–16th century castle and palace, the retrospective model of Vilnius’ castles, the wooden sewage gutter of the early 16th century and the blackened and melted bricks, as well as the fallen vault from the wars of the mid‑17th century.

The fourth exhibition hall, where you will see the east wall of the 16th century palace, is dedicated to the early settlement, which was situated in that area of the palace. Here one can find examples of its wooden architecture and early masonry. This exhibition hall is also dedicated to the formation of the state of Lithuania since the first time its name was mentioned until the days of the King Mindaugas and the Grand Duke Gediminas. The oldest archaeological finds reach back to the Stone Age. The confluence valley of the Neris and Vilnelė rivers, with its hills, has long been a convenient place to settle, but traces of sedentary life were captured only in the middle of the first millennium A.D. One of the witnesses of this process is a temple ring, marked with the first number of the audio guide.
(1) Temple ring 
Temple rings are jewellery for a woman’s head covering, worn on both sides of a cap or some other head covering near the temple, often several at a time. There are three main types of temple rings – spiral, plate and circular, which differ both according to their chronology, as well as distribution field. The form of the copper temple ring with intertwined ends found in the territory of the Palace is a little different from the temple rings of the same type from the mid‑3rd–4th centuries and provides new valuable data about their development. It reminds of the neck rings of the later period with intertwined flat ends, dating back to the 5th–7th century. 
If the findings of Iron Age‑jewellery, weapons, working tools and rough pottery could talk, they would tell the legend of the Duke Šventaragis. Nowhere else are the visitors so close to the times of the mythical Duke as they are here, this place, in the Šventaragis valley, standing on the surface of the ground of those days. The historians of religion believe that Šventaragis was the one to introduce the custom of cremating the dead body. This religious reform took place circa 5th–6th century. Approximately at the same time the early settlement was established in the territory of the Palace. According to the Baltic customs, the burial place used to be established not far from the settlement, but in order to get there, one always had to cross water – a river or a lake. It is possible to speculate that the burial mounds, where the cremated inhabitants were buried, were established somewhere close ‑ on the other side of the River Vilnelė.
Other exhibits of the same showcase, as well as the stands of the hall show the emergence of the state of Lithuania and the confrontation of paganism and Christianity. Rings with swastikas, pieces of ceremonial oak rods, pendants with fertility symbols, Eastern Orthodox crosses and articles with the imprinted name of the Virgin Mary shows that the pagans, Catholics and Eastern Orthodox believers lived alongside at the foot of Gediminas’ Hill. The remains of frescos and figural bricks should not be left unnoticed. They were made in the days when the Grand Duke of Lithuania Gediminas sent his letters to Western Europe, while the imported ceramics, metal and glass items most likely remind of the visiting merchants. These early European ties are illustrated by the exhibit marked with the second number of the audio guide ‑ fragments of aquamanile.
2) Fragments of aquamanile
The first brick buildings in the territory of Vilnius Lower Castle were built back in the late 13th century and early 14th century from stones and bricks. The bricks were laid using the Baltic (or Wendish) brick bond method. The fragments of the legs of an aquamanile were found in one such building, which stood inside the early brick Vilnius Lower Castle and was likely to serve as the residence of a ruler or a bishop. 
Aquamanile is a bronze or ceramic vessel, in the form of one or more animal or human figures, intended for pouring water on the hands. In the medieval times these vessels were used for religious ceremonies in churches, but the nobles did not refrain from putting them on their tables, as washing hands during meals was an important part of the manor etiquette. It is believed that this lion‑shaped vessel could have reached Vilnius Lower Castle from Lower Saxony, where in the 13th century there was a bronze‑ware manufacturing centre. From there aquamaniles spread across many European countries. Perhaps this vessel intended for ritual purposes could have been used at the residence of the ruler, in the environment of the Bishop of Vilnius or during religious ceremonies, after the Cathedral was built. The church in the territory of the castle, which became a cathedral, is mentioned in the privilege Jogaila granted for Vilnius Diocese in 1387. More detailed information of its construction is lacking, but, as some researchers think, it could have been built by King Mindaugas back in the mid‑13th century.
Another exhibit, which certifies the early ties between Europe and Lithuania, as well as the process of Christianization, is in the same showcase. It is a pilgrim’s badge. It is marked with the number three.
(3) Pilgrim’s badge
Pilgrimage was one of the most popular practices in medieval times, the goal of which was to visit a certain place held sacred. The incentive for a pilgrimage usually was a desire to receive forgiveness of sins, fulfil a vow and a hope that in a certain place a prayer will be heard to obtain a healing from illness. Pilgrimages mostly took place on traditional roads. On their way pilgrims used to visit many famous churches and relics, acquire pilgrim badges and wear them on their clothes or hats as a proof of pilgrimage and for protection from disasters and illnesses.
Three major pilgrimage destinations were the Holy Land, Rome and the relics of St. James in Santiago de Compostela, Spain.
The pilgrim’s badge on display dates back to the late 14th ‑ early 15th century, that is, it reaches the days of the baptism of Lithuania. It depicts three hosts from the Bad Wilsnack area in Germany. The Biblical scenes imprinted on these hosts were: the Crucifixion, Christ at the Column and the Resurrection. In medieval times the town of Bad Wilsnack was one of the stops on the way to Santiago de Compostela. A person that had lost his pilgrim’s badge had to visit the church of Bad Wilsnack and pray at the sacred relics in it ‑ the three miraculous hosts. According to a legend, in 1383 a bishop, to whom the town belonged, quarrelled with a knight. Then the knight attacked and burned the church to the ground. Later the three hosts were found in the ruins suffused with blood. When the church was rebuilt, they were put into a special sanctuary and started to be worshipped by believers.

The exhibit marked with the number four is a leather purse. It is displayed in the fifth hall, which introduces the development of the residence of the Early and High Gothic times ‑ the years of the reign of the Grand Dukes Algirdas, Jogaila, Vytautas and Casimir Jagiellon.
(4) Leather purse
There was a number of artisans working in Vilnius Lower Castle of the late 14th ‑ early 15th century. Archaeologists have found various crafts‑related findings, including metal slag and fragments of work pieces, melting pots, moulds, bone, horn and amber work pieces, leather stripes and various tools used by craftsmen. The leather purse illustrates the works of the curriers.
A purse is an article of leather or textile mounted on a belt and intended for carrying everyday things. Such bags, purses, pouches and other similar articles for carrying things became especially popular in medieval Europe. During this period they became an inseparable part of the costume, and were both practical and at the same time fashionable accessories, which used to show the status of the owner.
During the archaeological research of Vilnius Lower Castle several such purses were found. All of them were more or less ornate, with several flaps and pockets, embroidered front, decorated with bindings and bound with bronze clasps. Most of them were found empty or in fragments.
The purse on display is unique, because it was found almost entirely whole and even had things inside it. The find dating back to the 14th century is made of goat’s leather, decorated with a decorative tarsia and beautiful embroidery. The inside of the bag is divided into two compartments with a small inner pocket. Inside it there were 6 nails, three of which were decorated, also a buckle, belt tip sheathing, two knives, one of which was a scale knife and another – a hafted knife, three iron objects of unclear purpose, an arrowhead, three wooden sticks belted with copper stripe (most likely buttons), also a sandstone hone and a tiny bead of sardonyx. The unique find apparently belonged to an inhabitant of Vilnius Lower Castle, perhaps an artisan, who used to carry his everyday things with him, which were likely to be used in his work.

The exhibit marked with the number five of the audio guide and displayed in the same showcase is a unique signet ring. We offer to take a closer look and also get to know the other crafts practised in the territory of the castle ‑ jewellery.
(5) Signet ring
The signet ring is made of gilded silver and coated with gold. It was found in the surroundings of a wooden building dating back to the late 14th ‑ early 15th century. The front of the ring is rectangular with a cross‑shaped mark in the centre. The hoop and the edges of the plate are decorated with diagonal dents and isosceles triangles. The hoop is additionally decorated with three hexagon‑shaped elements with floral ornament. The family brand of the Duke Korybut depicted on the front of this unique ring is possibly an abstract coat of arms.
Signet rings functioned as seals or signatures ‑ the face of a ring with certain markings used to be pressed against wax and stuck to legal or commercial acts. 
At the end of the 14th century the Duke Korybut and his family took active action along with his brother Jogaila: in the struggle between Kęstutis and Jogaila for the title of the Grand Duke, Korybut was Jogaila’s constant supporter and helped in taking over the castle of Vilnius. It is therefore likely that this gilded silver ring was lost by Korybut himself or some member of his retinue.

The exhibit number six is displayed in the same showcase. It is a mould for making rings. It proves that articles of jewellery were not only used in the environment of Vilnius’ residence, but produced here as well.
(6) Mould for making rings
The ring mould made of sandstone with an ornament of two articles in the centre and a groove for pouring metal dates back to the 14th‑15th century. Two metal rods on the edges of the article ensure that one half of the mould is put together exactly with the other one. The mould could be used for casting two rings at a time: one with a widened rhombic front and the other with a widened hexagonal openwork front. They are also on display near the mould.
Such stone moulds with a carved model of an item could have been used multiple times for making articles from brass or tin. The rings cast in these moulds found in the territory of the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania belong to the cultural layer of 14th‑15th centuries. The moulds and other items related to the activity of jewellers found during archaeological research show that during 14th‑15th centuries Vilnius Lower Castle concentrated a large craft centre. Jewellery making included various techniques: casting, stretching, hammering, polishing, soldering, engraving, glass cutting, encrusting, wire wrapping, twisting, winding as well as techniques for filigreeing and granulation. Jewellery was made of various metal alloys, tin, lead, brass and zinc. There were silver and gold jewellery as well.
The next showcase displays the exhibit marked with the number seven. These are scale armour plates. They recall the defensive nature and purpose of the residence of Vilnius of that time, as well as the military conflicts, which took place in 14th‑15th centuries not only in Western Europe, but also in the region of the Baltic Sea. 
(7) Scale armour plates
Up to the early 15th century the castles of Vilnius were constantly stormed by the crusaders. Powder‑firearm usage was greatly important in the warfare of the period, the value of archers and crossbowers also increased. A crossbow was one of the main weapons of that time, used both by the crusaders and the defenders of Vilnius castle. Several of the arrowheads on display in this showcase remember the siege of the castle of Vilnius in 1394, which was mentioned in the chronicles of Wigand of Marburg, and are associated with the Genoan crossbowmen. The warriors of the Lithuanian army were protected from the enemy’s arrows by chainmail, lamellar and scale type armour. The scale armour plates are displayed in this showcase. 
A large unique set of scale armour plates dating back to the late 14th ‑ early 15th century stands out among the pieces of chainmail, scale and plate armour found in the territory of Vilnius Lower Castle and the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania. It consists of 28 pieces. The length of the quite large plates varies from 68 to 90 mm, and the width from 83 to 40 mm. Two of these plates have buckles. Scale armour plates were arranged according to the principle of scales or roof tiles, by stitching the top edge and riveting the convex centre‑piece to leather. Such was a way to produce relatively strong armour, which did not restrict movement.
Similar plates were found in East Slavic lands, which were a part of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania or in its neighbourhood. In the 14th century the armour of this type was quite popular in Western Europe as well.
The National Museum – the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania ‑ can be proud of a large Gothic architectural ceramics collection. The exhibit marked with the number eight of the audio guide is a stove tile depicting the double‑tailed siren Melusina. 
(8) Stove tile with the double‑tailed siren Melusina
Architectural ceramics include stove tiles, floor tiles, wall tiles and clay roof tiles. Ornamented stove tiles decorated with various scenes and floor tiles testify to the artistic taste of the Gothic era, while carefully applied glaze and precise ornaments ‑ the mastery of the artisans. The single style of ceramics for interior decoration in the second half of the 15th century was possibly created by masters from Poland, implementing the order of the Grand Duke or the Bishop of Vilnius. One of the most impressive finds of that period is the stove tile with the double‑tailed siren Melusina.
Flat ceramic tile stoves were used to heat the living quarters in Vilnius Lower Castle starting in the 15th century. Gothic tiles are rarely found in Lithuania, because building such stoves used to be very expensive and only the rich people or persons of high status in society could afford them.
The collection of the 15th century Gothic tiles found during archaeological research consists of 630 fragments decorated with almost 60 different scenes, 30 of which depict coats of arms. Aside from coats of arms, the stove tiles feature various fantastic creatures, saintly figures, various animals and geometric ornaments. The reconstruction of the mid. 15th century stove in the Gothic antechamber on the second floor of the Palace is based on these tiles.
One of the more interesting characters depicted on the pictorial tiles, is the double‑tailed siren. There are many fairy tales and legends about these creatures. A siren is a beautiful woman with big breasts, has a tail of a fish or a snake instead of her legs and lives under water. In Greek mythology sirens use their beautiful songs to infatuate sailors and sink their ships. When Christianity took hold of Europe sirens became a symbol of temptation and sin. 
In the 14th century Europe there was a popular legend about the siren Melusina. Relief floor tiles with this character were also found in the territory of the Lower Castle. The double‑tailed Melusina was also often portrayed on Gothic stove tiles in the neighbouring Czechia, Hungary and Poland. In the 15th‑early 16th centuries, with breaks, these countries used to be ruled by the members of the Jagiellon dynasty of Lithuanian origin.
The stove tile displayed in the same showcase and marked with the number 9, featuring St. George, reflects popular scenes of Christian iconography of the Gothic era in Lithuania. 
(9) Gothic stove tile with St. George
One of the most beautiful articles in the collection of Gothic stove tiles of our museum is a stove tile, which depicts St. George spearing a dragon.
St. George was particularly popular in the Middle Ages. According to the "Golden Legend" of the 13th century, George was a Roman soldier, who believed in Jesus and was famous for his courage. His greatest deed was slaying the dragon, which ravaged the town of Silene in Libya, and saving the princess, who had been sent to be fed to the dragon. In the days of the Emperor Diocletian, Christians were persecuted, thus, when it turned out that George was a believer, he was tortured to death.
This saint, who became the ideal of knighthood in the middle ages, today is also considered a patron of soldiers and knighthood and is worshipped at churches both in the East and in the West. The cult of St. George was especially popular during the Crusades ‑ soldiers considered it a great honour to fight under his flag. St. George is a patron of England, Georgia, Portugal, Catalonia and also of the old state of Lithuania.
Paintings and sculptures usually portray St. George piercing the dragon, with the terrified princess standing or kneeling nearby. During the Middle Ages St. George was preferably portrayed not as a Roman soldier, but a knight, dressed in period‑specific armour. 
The saint on this Gothic stove tile is portrayed as a nobleman of the early 15th century: with a clearly visible cuirass, knight’s belt, bascinet helmet with a raised visor, aventail ‑ bascinet helmet with a raised visor, hourglass‑shaped gloves and a spear. This saint, depicted on the stove tile, can help us imagine how the heavy cavalry of Lithuania and Poland looked like on the battlefield of Grunwald. The article dates back to the second half of the 15th century, thus we can assume that the manufacturer of the swage of the tile used an earlier image or still used the swages made in the early 15th century for producing stove tiles. A stove tile with exactly the same image is stored at the Museum of the Origins of the Polish State in Gniezno. We can only guess if both of these articles were made at the same workshop.
A stove tile with a Grass‑snake displayed in the same showcase and marked with the number ten of the audio guide presents an interesting and valuable group of armorial Gothic tiles.
(10) Armorial tile with a Grass‑snake
Approximately half of the scenes in the collection of Gothic stove tiles of Vilnius Lower Castle consist of armorial images. Often an armorial Gothic escutcheon with a rounded bottom takes up the entire tile surface, and less frequently ‑ depicts a small tilted escutcheon, with the helmet of the coat of arms and its decorations above. The Gothic stove tiles found in the territory of the Palace feature about 30 different coats of arms. Not all of them could be identified, as a part of the tiles survived only in small fragments. Aside from the rider on the coat of arms of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania ‑ Vytis, the clay plates include the coats of arms of various noble families. Many of these coats of arms were granted to the Lithuanian nobility in 1413, through the Union of Horodlo with Poland.
The coat of arms Wąż, which means "Grass‑snake", was given to the nobleman Koczan Sukowicz. The stove tile features a late Gothic escutcheon with a crowned grass‑snake, heraldically facing the right and holding an apple with a cross in its mouth. It is unclear, whether the coat of arms depicted on the stove tile belonged to the descendants of this nobleman, because according to the Polish tradition, a heraldic family consisted of persons, sharing the same coat of arms, no matter if they were related in blood or not.
The tiles found featuring this coat of arms were covered in brown or green glazing or not glazed at all. The scales of the Grass‑snake were made on wet clay, using a stick or a nail. 
The remains of the Gothic armorial stoves in Lithuania are not a unique phenomenon. Such stoves used to be built throughout Central Europe ‑ Hungary, Poland, and Czechia. It is likely that the heraldic stoves not only heated the halls of the nobility, but also were perceived as a certain ceramic armorial.
The splendour of the Gothic floors of the residence is testified by the exhibit No. 11, displayed in the same showcase ‑ a floor tile illustrating a Biblical story about the prophet Jonah.
(11) Pictorial floor tile illustrating the Biblical story about Jonah, the prophet of Israel
The surface of the diamond‑shaped embossed tile with its slightly splayed sides is covered in green glaze. The centre of the tile features an impressed frame with a drawing of shallow relief: a huge fish ‑ a whale ‑ swallowing a man. The scene of this floor tile is based on the Biblical story about Jonah, the prophet of Israel, who lived circa 8th century B. C. E. The story is told in the Old Testament, the Book of Jonah, also known as the Prophesy of Jonah. It says that on God’s behest Jonah had to go to Nineveh, which was the capital of Assyria in those days, in order to proclaim God’s judgement. But the prophet did not obey the Almighty and sailed in the opposite direction. During a great storm at sea, the ship’s crew used divination to find the perpetrator of the disaster and threw him overboard. Then Jonah was swallowed by a whale sent by God. The prophet spent three days and three nights in its belly praying and repenting. Then he was vomited out on dry land not far from Nineveh and finally fulfilled the will of God. God spared the repenting Nineveh and thereby demonstrated that he is the God of not only Jews, but other nations as well. A whale as a Christian concept symbolizes an abyss and darkness, while the story about Jonah is considered an allegory of Christ’s death and resurrection.
This impressive floor tile, together with the other exhibits in the showcase, reflect the luxury of the late 15th century Gothic residence of Vilnius, as well as the iconographic scenes and armorial symbols much liked in the environment of Casimir Jagiellon, the ruler of Lithuania and Poland.
The sixth exhibition hall is dedicated to the ruling period of the Grand Duke of Lithuania and King of Poland Alexander Jagiellon lasting only 15 years, but was very important for the development of the capital of Lithuania and its residence, as the ruler visited here frequently and resided for long periods of time expanding his mansion. As a music lover, Alexander Jagiellon kept an orchestra, collected treasures for the Palace, expanded its library and employed many artists and artisans. This ruler’s taste for art is shown by the glass goblet made by Venetian glass makers and marked with the number twelve of the audio guide. 
(12) Glass goblet
Many of the shards of the glass containers found during the research of the territory of the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania are typical of the Middle East and Western Europe. Historical sources rarely mention glassware ‑ vessels made of precious metals occur more often ‑ but the surviving messages suggest that painted or otherwise decorated glass goblets were well‑liked and used for special occasions.
On February 15, 1495, at Vilnius Cathedral the Grand Duke of Lithuania and the King of Poland Alexander Jagiellon married Elena, the daughter of Ivan III, the Grand Prince of Muscovy. The wedding description mentions that, during the ceremony, a goblet of wine was held above the head of the queen. After the prayer and drinking the wine the goblet was broken. Unfortunately, there is no knowledge of how the goblet looked, as its description is undetailed.
The goblet made by Venetian glass makers and dating back to late 15th‑early 16th century was found shattered into more than 30 small glass pieces outside the southern wing of Vilnius Lower Castle. Its widening, bell‑shaped foot is made of gilded dark blue glass, formed in prominent relief waves. Similar goblets used to be produced in Venice circa 1500. It is possible that the goblet broken during the wedding ceremony was similar or no less luxurious. The goblet of Alexander Jagiellon bearing the heraldic symbols of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania, made in Venice, is kept at Krakow’s Jagiellonian University. You can see an exact copy of this goblet donated to the museum in the treasury exhibition.
After taking a look at the remaining old ruins in the seventh, eighth and ninth halls, the map of the Grand Duke’s Way in Vilnius and the map of the 15th‑16th century Lithuanian castles, we invite you to ascend to the three halls on the first floor ‑ the tenth, the eleventh and the twelfth, which represent the development of the Palace in the period of Renaissance. 
Renaissance came to Lithuania in the days of Sigismund the Old, who married the Italian duchess Bona Sforza, that is, the early 16th century. The flourishing period of the palace is probably resembled best by the large collection of stove tiles found during the research. The scenes of the stove tiles repeat the scenes of the engravings of Lucas Cranach, Georg Pencz and Hans Sebald Beham. By pressing the number thirteen of the audio guide, you will get to know one of the most fashionable series of stove tiles of that time.
(13) Stove tile depicting an allegorical hunting scene with hares
One of the most interesting and most impressive series of tiles of a Renaissance stove built in the mid. 16th century are decorated with the allegorical hunting scene with hares, representing the "World Upside‑Down" ["Mundus Inversus"]. One corner tile of this stove is decorated with the coat of arms of Bona Sforza’s family.
The left side of the corner tile of this series depicts a dog boiling in a huge kettle and two hares standing on their hind feet, dragging another hunting dog to the cauldron. On the right side of the stove tile there are two hares standing on their hind feet, targeting the attacking hunting dogs with a bow and a spear. Other stove tiles of this series depict hares with ladles around a kettle, a deer attacked by hounds, a hunter roasting above a spit and a fox stealing a rooster.
The main idea of the world upside‑down is instructive and liberating humour, a response to the worship of procedures and regulations, the desire to experience chaos and to turn the impossible into the possible. A number of similar scenes with hares are depicted in the margins of the 13th‑14th century manuscripts created in Western Europe. The graphic arts of this topic were very popular in the 16th and even in the 17th century. Most of the details of the allegorical images depicted on cornice tiles are known from the copper engravings of the artist Israhel van Meckenem coming from the Lower Rhine of the late 15th century. 
A stove made of the stove tiles of this series will decorate the apartment of Bona Sforza on the third floor of the East Wing of the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania, when the Palace is completed. 
Innovations and artistic fashions developing during the Renaissance included not only interior decoration, but everyday life as well, which were reflected by jewellery, clothing and, of course, footwear. The footwear used in the 16th century residence of Vilnius is represented by the exhibit marked with the number fourteen, on display at the same hall. 
(14) Remnants of a low shoe with a cork sole
In the toilet tower of the southern wing ‑ the latrine ‑ archaeologists found an abundance of shoe parts of the early 16th century, almost 150 of which were identified as shoes without a pair. The shoemaker’s guild of Vilnius was established in 1522, thus the larger part of the shoe examples found by the archaeologists are likely to be the products of local craftsmen.
Among the leather footwear finds there was a peculiar model of goat leather shoes with a corkwood sole up to 5 cm height. This piece of footwear was made according to the latest fashion of the period: the upper part of the shoe is sown of two pieces of differently coloured leather, while the heel is not attached to the sole and opens when walking. Such footwear was comfortable to wear and less tiring to one’s feet. 
In Western Europe, corkwood was imported from the Iberian Peninsula or the Pyrenees. It was especially widely used in making shoes. The Venetian footwear of cokoli type, sloping towards the front was very popular in Italy of the 16th century. It had high soles, which sometimes were of as much as half a meter high. Such shoes were worn by ladies of high society and courtesans. Although the corkwood soles found in the Palace did not reach such heights as in Venice, nevertheless, these types of shoes should be associated with the footwear of the courtiers, while the narrow part of the sole shows that it was worn by a woman. This type of footwear could have reached the Palace together with Bona Sforza and the courtiers of Italian origin serving at her court.
When in 1544 Sigismund Augustus became the ruler of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania, he initiated new construction of the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania in the Lower Castle, which lasted until 1553. Our twelfth exhibition hall is dedicated to this ruler’s reign. The stove made of tiles decorated with the coat of arms of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania is associated with the palace reconstruction initiated by Sigismund Augustus. Most of such stove tiles were found during the research of the northern wing. One of them is marked with the number fifteen of the audio guide.
(15) Renaissance stove tile depicting the coat of arms of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania
Heraldic stove tiles were usually used in constructing stoves for the representational premises of the residences of the European nobility. They used to testify the owner’s status in society and the dynastic family ties.
The centre of the stove tile on display depicts an armorial escutcheon with an armoured rider sitting on a galloping horse, holding a sword in his right hand and a shield with the double Jagiellonian cross in his left. 
The Lithuanian coat of arms "Vytis" is one of the oldest coats of arms in Europe. In the time of Algirdas and Kęstutis, the Grand Dukes of Lithuania, the rider with the coat of arms of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania possibly symbolized the Grand Duke of Lithuania in Vilnius, while the infantryman ‑ the ruler of Trakai Duchy. The rider as the coat of arms of the state of Lithuania and its ruler was given meaning by the Grand Duke of Lithuania Vytautas, when he changed the infantryman in his heraldry with the rider circa 1382‑1384.
Probably one of the first to give a Polish name "Pogonia" to the coat of arms of Lithuania was the Polish chronicler Marcin Bielski in 1551. The Lithuanian name equivalent was also searched for. For example, in 17th century Konstantinas Sirvydas identified two equivalents: "waykitoias" (the chaser) ‑ when talking about a person and "waykimas" (chasing) ‑ when talking about an action. This title was used up to the mid. 19th century, when Simonas Daukantas gave the rider ‑ not the coat of arms ‑ the term of "vytis" (the chaser).
This and other authentic stove tiles found in the territory of the Palace were used in reconstructing the stove of the mid. 16th century Renaissance audience hall on the second floor.
And now we would like to introduce you to another, already the last piece of the first exhibition, which symbolizes the Baroque era and the reign of the Vasa dynasty. This period is presented in the halls thirteen and fourteen. The exhibit is marked with the number sixteen of the audio guide. It is an architectural detail with the Vasa coat of arms.
(16) Piece of a pediment with the Vasa coat of arms, encircled by the chain of the Order of the Golden Fleece
During the early Baroque period the interiors of the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania were decorated with elements made of greenish‑grey sandstone, as well as reddish, white and black limestone. Archaeologists have found impediments, window and door surrounds, fireplace details, floor tiles and fragments of balusters made of these materials. One of the most impressive witnesses of the former Baroque palace interior is a fragment of a door or window upper surround – an impediment ‑ found near the southern wing of the palace. In the centre of the massive sandstone block there is the Vasas’ coat of arms, crowned with a closed crown, typical of the 17th century. The coat of arms is encircled by the chain of the Order of the Golden Fleece.
 One of the most honourable in Europe, the Order of the Golden Fleece, was established in 1429 by the Duke of Burgundy Philip the Good. From 1477 the exceptional right to grant the Order of the Golden Fleece was inherited by the Habsburgs. This Order was granted to four rulers of Lithuania and Poland ‑ Sigismund the Old, Sigismund Augustus, Sigismund Vasa and his son Ladislaus. Closely related to the Habsburgs, the Vasas were especially fond of this Order, thus they often were portrayed wearing it in portraits and carvings. 
It is likely that this intricate architectural detail adorned a palace hall, which was reconstructed and decorated after the fire of 1610. This heraldic composition was probably gilded or silvered. This is one of the most impressive elements, which decorated the interior of the palace and helps us to imagine the luxury of the early Baroque.
And so, congratulations on having finished the first tour of the historical and architectural development of the Palace and now we invite you to continue to the second tour, where you will have an opportunity to explore the reconstructed representative historical interiors. We will start the tour from the twenty‑first hall on the second floor ‑ the Gothic guardroom ‑ which displays the portrait of Mikołaj Krzysztof Radziwiłł the Orphan, marked with the number seventeen.
(17) Portrait of Mikołaj Krzysztof Radziwiłł the Orphan
The first hall of the reconstructed representative historical interiors is the guardroom. Such a room existed in all rulers’ residences preceding the group of representational premises. They were used to check the guests coming to the ruler or another authority.
The guardroom of the Palace was reconstructed as the late Gothic hall of the days of Alexander Jagiellon, the Grand Duke of Lithuania, and exhibits mostly weapons and armours of 16th‑18th century. Near the authentic weapons you can see several graphic portraits of noblemen wearing armour. 
The story of the portrait of Mikołaj Krzysztof Radziwiłł the Orphan, the Grand Marshal of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania, the Voivode of Vilnius, Duke of the Holy Roman Empire is very interesting. 
In the 16th century the Archduke of Austria and the Count of Tyrol, Ferdinand Habsburg II, gathered a collection of armour and weapons of well‑known warlords ‑ the Radziwills among them ‑ in his residence in Ambras. The publication in the German language issued in 1603 contained an error: an artist portrayed Mikołaj Krzysztof Radziwiłł the Orphan with the armour of his father Mikołaj Radziwiłł the Black, while the latter "got" his son’s armour. The portrait exhibited here is exactly from the publication which presented the collection of Ferdinand Habsburg II.
Over the centuries the collection of Ferdinand II changed its location and was tossed around, but the armour of Mikołaj Radziwiłł the Black, depicted in the graphic picture, created by the famous master from Nuremberg Kunz Lochner circa 1555, survive to this day, although scattered in several museums of the world. The larger part of the set is displayed at the Museum of Art History in Vienna, Austria.
And now we invite you to proceed to the Gothic antechamber. The part of a scene from the tapestry "Procession with Elephants," on display there, is marked with the number eighteen.
 (18) Part of the scene from the tapestry "Procession with Elephants" 
The Gothic antechamber served as the entrance hall for the guests invited for an audience with the ruler. It is difficult to say how often the audiences with the ruler residing in Vilnius used to be held. It is known that the rulers of Lithuania used to not only receive foreign envoys and also appoint audiences with Lithuanian state officials, clergy and messengers of the city. The palace was visited by the citizens of Vilnius and other cities, asking to confirm privileges and to deal with issues relevant to the cities of Lithuania. The historical sources hold knowledge that audiences were held not only with the ruler, but with his wife as well. They often accepted audiences in different halls.
The entrance hall to the Throne room, where guests prepared for the audience with the ruler, reflects its historical function and is recreated according to the late Gothic style of the days of the Grand Duke of Lithuania Alexander Jagiellon.
The exposition of the movable treasures of the hall displays the oldest 15th‑16th century Gothic furniture, paintings, other valuables and two tapestries of the early 16th century, which are the oldest in Lithuania. Thus, they are almost 500 years old. One of them ‑ "Procession with Elephants" ‑ is a very rare and highly artistic tapestry, created at the workshop of Jean Grenier or Arnould Poissonier in Tournai, Flandria. The height of the whole tapestry was possibly 4 metres and the width ‑ as much as 7 metres. The primary textile could have belonged to a series of artistic textiles which was commissioned by King Manuel I of Portugal for the palace in Lisbon. The workshop mentioned produced a large number of tapestries depicting exotic animals and this theme spread in European art with Vasco da Gama’s voyages around Africa to India. This tapestry was donated to the museum by the Royal Palace Restoration Foundation.
If you are ready for an audience with the ruler, then we invite you to the Renaissance audience hall. The tapestry on display here with the coat of arms of Sigismund Augustus, the Grand Duke of Lithuania, is marked with the number nineteen of the audio guide
(19) Tapestry with the coat of arms of the Grand Duke of Lithuania Sigismund Augustus The function of this Renaissance style hall is ceremonial. Various audiences used to take place here. During audiences, messengers, accompanied by Lithuanian officials, introduced themselves to the Grand Duke of Lithuania, brought greetings from their rulers, presented official diplomatic documents and presents.
Knowing the rank of the frequent visitors, we can only imagine how it used to happen. Among them there were the messengers of the Apostolic See, the Holy Roman Empire, Hungary, Czechia, the Ottoman Empire, Moldavia, Venice, Ferrara and other Italian duchies, also rulers or heirs to the throne ‑ the duke of Prussia Albrecht Hohenzollern, the prince of Sweden John III Vasa, the Prince Valdemar Christian, the son of King Christian IV of Denmark and others.
In 16th‑early 17th centuries this audience hall was used not only as ceremonial, but also as a musical venue, as it was the largest on this floor. It is believed that this was where the raising ceremony of Sigismund Augustus to be the Grand Duke of Lithuania took place in 1529 and where in 1633 and 1639 the ruler of Lithuania and Poland Ladislaus Vasa received the oaths of allegiance of the Courland dukes. In the early 17th century, the hall was equipped with machinery for performances.
The exposition of the movable treasures of the audience hall reflects the style of the mid. 16th century Renaissance. It displays the copies of the portraits of the 16th century Jagiellon dynasty, as well as one of the diamonds of the artistic textile collection of the Palace. It is a tapestry with the combined coat of arms of Sigismund Augustus, the Grand Duke of Lithuania. It is considered that the series of heraldic tapestries, which includes the piece of art mentioned, was commissioned by Sigismund Augustus when he ruled Lithuania in 1544‑1548 by the will of his father.
The combined coat of arms in the centre of the tapestry consists of six areas. The coat of arms of Bona Sforza, the mother of Sigismund Augustus, is a Grass‑snake swallowing a child and you can see it in the centre. The coat of arms of Sigismund the Old with the Polish eagle and the initials of the Sigismund Augustus S A, as well as Vytis of the coat of arms of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania are above. While below we can see the coats of arms of the historical lands, which belonged to the Grand Duchy of Lithuania: the Archangel Michael of Kiev, the Cross of Volhynia and the bear on all its fours of Smolensk.
And now we invite you to the Renaissance State Chancellery room ‑ the twenty fifth hall. You will find it after crossing the Renaissance anteroom ‑ the twenty‑fourth hall. The anteroom was meant to divide the ruler’s private apartments and the audience hall. Marked with the number twenty in the Chancellery room is the Third Statute of Lithuania.
(20) The Third Statute of Lithuania
The three of the 16th century codified Statutes of Lithuania are greatly important cultural monuments of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania. The statute book, which was original in the whole of Europe, was formed based on court practice, the Roman and customary law and the rulers’ privileges. The Renaissance Chancellery room displays the edition of the Third Statute of Lithuania. The First Statute of Lithuania was approved in 1529, the Second, supplemented, Statute of Lithuania ‑ in 1566. Both of these first legal codes were not printed and spread only in the form of copies.
The Third Statute of Lithuania, printed in 1588 for the first time, was in the Ruthenian language, which was the official language of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania of that time. The Third Statue highlights the sovereignty of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania and discusses the main public legal norms. All three Statues of Lithuania were edited and approved at the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania in Vilnius. The Third Statute of Lithuania was later edited and supplemented under the supervision of the chancellors of Lithuania.
The rare copy of the Third Statute displayed on table in the hall was printed in 1619 in the Polish language. Like the Ruthenian edition of 1588, it was printed at the Mamonicz printing house in Vilnius. There are about 80 printed copies of the Ruthenian edition of 1588 remaining in the world and even more of the edition displayed at our museum. However, this, third edition, is also a very rare and valuable book, which testifies the European level of the Lithuanian legal culture. It is symbolic that the Statute is exhibited in the palace, where it was drafted and developed.
The beginning of the Statute, before Leonas Mamoničius’s (Leo Mamonicz) dedication to Lew Sapieha, the chancellor of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania, features a printed ornate Baroque coat of arms of the Sapieha family with a eulogy. This versed eulogy, commenting on the symbols of the coat of arms and relating them to certain works and achievements of a person, is a classic example of armorial poetry. During the preparation of this statue the contribution of Lew Sapieha was the greatest. A copy of his portrait is displayed in this hall.
Another Statute of the museum is displayed in the adjacent Renaissance clerk’s room. It was published in 1744. There we offer you to take a closer look at one of the most impressive pieces of furniture displayed at our museum ‑ a cabinet ‑ marked with the number twenty‑one. 
(21) Cabinet 
Since the days of Sigismund the Old, the Grand Duke of Lithuania and King of Poland, the 16th century Renaissance clerk’s room was most likely the ruler’s bedroom. 
The sources of the early 17th century mention that the nearby room was the favourite room of the Grand Duke of Lithuania and the King of Poland Sigismund Vasa and he spent most of his time here. Undoubtedly there had to be the premises for his secretaries and scribes as well, with a stairway access to the audience hall on the third floor. Therefore, the exposition of a clerk’s room was arranged exactly here. The valuables and furniture on display create the impression of Renaissance and early Baroque. One of the more interesting pieces of furniture in the hall is a cabinet, inside of which there are a number of small drawers, doors and other spaces.
Cabinets were usually easily transportable, intended for keeping documents, letters, jewellery, coins and other valuable small items. Quite often the opened door of the cabinet was used as a writing desk. Cabinets differ in their purpose and place of manufacturing. Their unifying feature is splendour, which had to show the status of the owner, his financial possibilities and influence.
Both the inside and outside of this cabinet is richly ornamented with tarsias: city views, architectural elements, floral ornaments, as well as human and bird figures. The cabinet was made in the late 16th century Germany, in the city of Augsburg, where the production of such cabinets flourished during the 16th‑17th centuries. It is likely that such a piece of furniture could have been owned by the rulers of Lithuania as well.
The tapestries stylistically and thematically close to the verdures of Sigismund Augustus are also on display in this hall, marked with the number twenty‑two.
(22) Tapestry depicting a hunting scene 

During the 16th century and later, the tapestries with animal, bird figures and scenes from the everyday life of people were especially popular. They used to be called verdures. 

This tapestry is rich with hunting motifs, where not only humans are hunting: a lynx is ready to attack a she‑wolf with her pups, a snake slithers towards a tortoise, and a wolf runs with a sheep in its mouth. 

The author of the skilfully created tapestry of the second half of the 16th century is unknown. However, the two letters "B" with a red escutcheon between them show that the textile was woven in the workshops of Brussels, which was the most important centre of artistic textiles in Europe of the time. 

The animals depicted in the tapestry are similar to the ones that were woven in the verdures ordered by Sigismund Augustus, currently on display at the Wawel Royal Castle in Krakow, Poland.
And now we invite you to travel from Renaissance to Baroque, that is, to go to the Italian Baroque ruler’s room ‑ the hall twenty‑seven. It displays an impressive picture by Lionello Spada, marked with the number twenty‑three of the audio guide.
(23) Picture by Lionello Spada "Ludovisi concert" 
Based on the written sources of the 17th century, the hall, where the picture "Ludovisi concert" is on display today, is identified as the most favourite room of Sigismund Vasa, the Grand Duke of Lithuania and King of Poland, adjacent to the Chapel of St. Casimir, which he started to build.
The décor of the interior of the hall reflects the style of the early Baroque, while the pieces of applied and fine arts create an impression of an early 17th century Italian office.
The Italian Baroque room of the ruler exhibits one of the most interesting Baroque paintings of the museum ‑ "Ludovisi concert" by the famous Italian artist Lionello Spada. The canvas reflects the traditions of musical culture that manifested in this palace in the early 17th century.
The painted composition of musicians, preparing for a concert, raise many questions for art historians. Taking a closer look you will notice that the number of the sheet music books on the table and musical instruments do not match: there are only six sheet music books, while the number of the instruments is seven. By examining the picture it turned out that the flute player with the seventh instrument ‑ the flute ‑ on the right was painted later. A very similar picture, only without the flute player, is exhibited at the Louvre Museum in Paris. 
The topic of music dominating in this picture was not alien to the palace of our rulers as well. It is known that the rulers of medieval Lithuania had musicians or even chapels of musicians mostly invited from abroad. The fashion of Italian music was brought to Lithuania in 16th century by Bona Sforza. In the early 17th century Ladislaus Vasa, the King of Poland and the Grand Duke of Lithuania, also gave great attention to music. During his reign, in 1636, the first opera in Lithuania ‑ "The Abduction of Helen" ‑ was staged at the Palace. Later two more early Italian operas were staged here. Thus, the music of opera could be heard here in Vilnius much earlier than in Paris, London or Napoli.
The adjoining room, which had a passageway from the Palace to the Cathedral, displays an exposition dedicated to St. Casimir. The exposition of the interiors of the Palace continues on the third floor. The Renaissance Great hall on the third floor, that is the thirty‑fourth hall, has been reconstructed from three historical halls and is intended for cultural, as well as ceremonial events. The adjacent antechamber, or the thirty‑fifth hall, exhibits impressive tapestries of war themes. One of them is marked with the number twenty‑four of the audio guide.
(24) Tapestry "Priam Facing the City of Troy" (from the set “The Story of the Trojan War”)

State representational antechambers had important ceremonial functions of the palace. During festivities, various delegations going to visit the ruler, used to leave their consort of certain ranks in each of these antechambers and only the leaders of the delegations could enter the Audience hall. This antechamber was the place, where the consort of the lowest rank used to stay.
The antechamber décor and artistic valuables often used to reflect a certain iconographic theme and also had to manifest the status and power of the state. The iconographic theme of the first antechamber is related to warfare, thus, aside from the portraits of the famous Lithuanian military leaders, it also exhibits the early 17th century tapestry "Priam Facing the City of Troy", telling the story of Troy’s defeat from Virgil’s "Aeneid".

Priam, the King of Troy is depicted in the centre of the tapestry. On the left side we can see Sinon, bound and led by soldiers, who persuades the King of Troy to order to bring the wooden horse into the city as a sacrifice to the goddess Athena. With a gesture of his hand Priam gives a sign to bring in the horse, which can be seen behind him. When the Trojans fulfil their ruler’s command, at night Sinon lights a huge fire signalling the Greeks to come back. When Ulysses came out of the horse, a ferocious battle broke out, Troy was burned and the King Priam ‑ murdered. The edging of the tapestry also has a lot of symbolic meanings, with an allegory of peace at the top and Mars the God of war at the bottom.

The textile was created in Brussels, the workshops of Frans I van den Hecke of the early 17th century. Nearby you can see another tapestry of this series "Agamemnon Before the Altar of Apollo" (from the set “The Story of the Trojan War”).

The residences of the rulers were often decorated with tapestries, which depicted not only Antique scenes, but religious themes as well. One such textile is exhibited in the Second Renaissance antechamber or the hall thirty‑six and is marked with the number twenty‑five of the audio guide.

(25) Tapestry "The Healing of Old Tobit" (from the set “The Story of the Old Testament”)
Like the one before, this hall is also recreated in the style of Renaissance. It is closer to the Audience hall and according to the palace ceremonial requirements, the more distinguished members of delegations would have been received here. 
Seeking to recreate the impression of the ceremonial palace antechamber of the late 16th ‑ early 17th century, it displays Renaissance and Mannerist furniture and tapestries. One of the most impressive exhibits on display here is the tapestry "The Healing of Old Tobit".
This tapestry illustrates a story from the Book of Tobit of the Old Testament. The blind old Tobit, sensing his death coming, sent his son Tobias to Media in order to retrieve money from his debtors. During his travel, Tobias was accompanied by the archangel Raphael, who appeared as an unknown companion and gave him useful advice. When he came back and anointed his father’s eyes with fish gall, the father regained his sight. Raphael told that he is an archangel and Tobit, together with his son Tobias, fell on the ground before him.
This textile belonged to a larger set and is a modified fragment of a larger composition. The prototype of the tapestry is most likely kept at the Museum of Art History in Vienna. It was created at the workshops of Brussels circa 1570 by an unknown author according to Bernard van Orley’s drawing. The first time the series of this scene was woven before 1539, by the order of the King of England Henry III, for the collection of the Tudor palace. Later, when the workshops of Willem de Kempeneer in Brussels acquired the drawings of this series, the tapestries were woven more than once. The workshops mentioned cooperated in weaving the tapestries for the collection of Sigismund Augustus as well.

"The Introduction of Adam and Eve" ‑ is another impressive tapestry at our museum. It is exhibited in the third Mannerist antechamber and is marked with the number twenty‑six of the audio guide.

(26) Tapestry "The Introduction of Adam and Eve" (from the set “The Story of the First Parents”)

The third antechamber is the largest historical hall of the palace, the last one preceding the Vasa‑era Throne room. It would have been one of the most luxurious rooms in the residence, where the most honoured delegates would have been invited when going for an audience with the ruler. The sessions of the Parliament, balls and other ceremonies, theatrical performances and operas were held here as well.

The hall was reconstructed in the late Renaissance or Mannerist style of the late 16th ‑ early 17th century. One of the most prominent elements of its décor is an armorial frieze depicting 23 coats of arms of the most famous and influential noblemen of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania, combined in typical Mannerist ornamentation. 
The impression of the third representational antechamber is created by the exhibited valuable Mannerist and early Baroque paintings, furniture and unique mid. 17th century Flemish tapestries, woven according to Biblical‑themed tapestry drawings that once belonged to Sigismund Augustus. One of them is the textile "The Introduction of Adam and Eve", illustrating the events, described in the Book of Genesis of the Old Testament.
However, this is not an identical replica of the tapestry ordered by Sigismund Augustus in the mid. 16th century. The tapestry exhibited here was woven about a hundred years later in the Flemish Region, in the workshops of Jean Leyniers in Brussels, according to one third of the original drawing, created by the famous artist Michiel Coxcie. Today the primary version of the textile according to that drawing is displayed at the Wawel Royal Castle in Krakow, Poland.
The same hall exhibits another mid. 16th century textile similar to the tapestry mentioned, created according to the series of drawings woven for Sigismund Augustus. That is a tapestry "The Offering of Cain and Abel" (from the set “The Story of the First Parents”). The collection of the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania, which consists of as much as twenty‑four 16th‑17th century textiles, is not only the most valuable in Lithuania, but also one of the most impressive in this European region.
And now, as opposed to the historical era when only the selected ones could gain access to the ruler, we invite you to the Baroque Audience hall or the Throne Room. It also exhibits an impressive 17th century cabinet, marked with the number twenty‑seven of the audio guide.
(27) Cabinet 
Welcome to an audience with the Grand Duke of Lithuania, to the most important hall of the State ceremonial chambers and of the whole palace. Exactly in such a hall the Grand Dukes of Lithuania, the Kings of Poland and Sweden from the Vasa dynasty used to solemnly accept their most honourable guests in the early 17th century.
The reconstructed interior décor of the Throne Room reflects the style of the early Baroque. 
This hall exhibits the most valuable Mannerist and early Baroque furniture ‑ beautiful Italian chests decorated with tarsias, as well as the unique cabinet created circa 1653 at the Jean Macé workshops of the French king’s craftsmen working in Paris. By the order of the royal palace, these workshops often produced furniture of such types. They were given as presents for kings and dukes of other European countries. It is likely that the piece of furniture on display here was given as a present to one of the German dukes. The rulers of Lithuania and Poland could have received such presents as well, as the brothers Ladislaus and John Casimir Vasa had married Marie Louise Gonzaga, the stepdaughter of the King of France Louis the XIII.
Such cabinets were often decorated with mythological scenes. The surface of this piece of furniture, coated with ebony, depicts many figures and scenes in carving and etching techniques. At the top you can see the Roman Gods Ceres and Bacchus, going to the wedding of Neptune and Amphitrite. The door on the left depicts a scene with Bacchus holding a cup, Venus and Ceres. On the door on the right we can see Venus with Mercury resting his head on her chest. Inside the cabinet there are 14 drawers, decorated with carved bird figures and two small doors. Behind them opens a view of a hall with round gilded columns, cornices, balustrades and painting elements. Pushing some of the details, decorated with architectural and painting elements, will open several small secret drawers, which are typical for Baroque cabinets.
And now turn around and you will see the exceptionally valuable Flemish tapestries from the series "The Story of Ulysses" of the second half of the 16th century. You will find out more about them by pressing the number twenty‑eight of the audio guide.

(28) Tapestry "Achilles and the Daughters of Lycomedes" (from the set “The Story of Ulysses”)

It is known that the series of early 17th century tapestries reflecting the theme of Ulysses was owned by the Grand Dukes of Lithuania and the Kings of Poland from the Vasa dynasty. The textiles on display here are stylistically close to some of the mid. 16th century tapestries owned by Sigismund Augustus.

 "Achilles and the Daughters of Lycomedes" is one of the most valuable tapestries of the museum’s collection. It was woven in 1570. The author of the drawings was an artist of the environment of Michiel I Coxcie. The skilfully woven tapestry depicts a scene from the life of the legendary Greek hero Achilles. Unwilling to go to the Trojan War, Achilles dressed as a young woman and hid among the daughters of the king Lycomedes. Having learned about it, Ulysses came up with a contrivance. He, together with Diomedes pretended to be merchants and came to the palace of Lycomedes. Among various goods they offered, there were various jewellery items, fabrics and several weapons. All the princesses became interested in jewellery and only Achilles was interested in weapons. This is the scene depicted in the tapestry, in the centre of which we can see Achilles taking a bow. Around him are Ulysses and Diomedes presenting their goods and the daughters of Lycomedes sitting and admiring the brought goods. 

The tapestry "Ulysses Bids Farewell to his Wife and Parents" on the other side of the window is from the same series of tapestries "The Stories of Ulysses ". The full series of textiles consists of no fewer than eight tapestries. A similar series of tapestries is preserved and displayed at Hardwick Hall in the Great Britain.

Both of these textiles are marked with the signs of three weavers: Nicolas Hellinck, Pieter van Aelst and an unknown weaver, to whom the geometrical sign belonged. The workshop signs of the two latter tapestries can be visible in the collection of the tapestries of Sigismund Augustus as well, thus it is likely that the whole series was woven at the same workshops in 1570, according to the drawings created by an artist of the environment of Michiel I Coxcie.
At the end of the exposition of the historical representational interiors, we invite you to the last hall ‑ the French Baroque audience room or the thirty‑ninth hall. It displays the tapestry "The Baptism of Clovis I", which is marked with the number twenty‑nine of the audio guide.

(29) Tapestry "The Baptism of Clovis I" (from the set “The Story of King Clovis I”)
The small room beside the Audience or the Throne Room was a compulsory element in a palace of the 16th‑17th century European monarch. Such a room was usually used for one‑on‑one discussions between the ruler and the leaders of a delegation being received
This room displays Renaissance and early Baroque French furniture, as well as the monumental Flemish tapestry created in the late 16th‑early 17th century, which depicts the baptism of the Frankish King Clovis I. 
The tapestry "The Baptism of Clovis I", created by an unknown author, tells the story about one of the most important events of the early Middle Ages ‑ the baptism of the Frankish King Clovis I in 496. The action takes place at the Reims Cathedral, where later many future kings of France were baptised and crowned. The person kneeling in the centre of the composition is Clovis I himself. On the left we can see the Saint Archbishop Remigius wearing a tiara, which is a luxurious ritual papal crown. Of course, Remigius was not a pope, thus in this case the tiara most likely represents the whole Catholic Church. On the right of Clovis I, stands his wife Clotilde. 
The edging of the tapestry incorporates round medallions with various scenes. Most of them are difficult to identify. The right corner at the top depicts a scene from the Trojan War, when the wooden horse was pushed into the city.
The copy of the portrait of John III Vasa, the King of Sweden, recalls that the beginning of the the Vasa dynasty’s way to the throne of the Polish–Lithuanian Commonwealth ‑ began exactly at this palace of Vilnius, where in 1562 the future King of Sweden married Catherine, the sister of Sigismund Augustus. Their son Sigismund Vasa became the first ruler of this dynasty on the throne of the Polish‑Lithuanian Commonwealth. The hall also exhibits the portrait of John Casimir Vasa. He was the last representative of the Vasa dynasty on the throne of the Commonwealth and closely related to France.
At the end of the tour around the Palace, we invite you to descend to the basement, where you will have an opportunity to explore the treasury exhibition. It is established in the forty‑third hall. One of the exhibits of the treasury is a cup made in the early 18th century. It is marked with the number thirty of the audio guide.
(30) Goblet

Since the very old days the rulers of Lithuania accumulated treasures and protected the treasury in their residences. The palace of Vilnius was no exception. The treasury guarded here became famous in the whole of Europe during the days of Sigismund Augustus, that is, in the mid. 16th century. Having seen this treasury, the papal nuncio Bernardino Buongiovanni expressed amazement that the treasures here were more valuable than those of the Pope or the Venetian doge. With time the treasures and art valuables of the rulers of Lithuania and Poland were scattered and destroyed. This small treasury exhibition reminds us of the wealth of European significance stored here. The exhibition space consists of two rooms. One of them exhibits the regalia of the rulers of Lithuania, while the other ‑ the 14th‑17th century coins found during the research, the remains of the hidden treasures and other valuables and rarities attributed to the treasury.

One of the goblets exhibited here, with a fairly wide foot and rich décor, was created at the very beginning of the 18th century Saxony, most likely, at the Heidelbach glass workshops. A colourful combined coat of arms incorporated in its centre depicts the eagle of Poland and the Vytis of Lithuania with two armorial escutcheons with the grand ducal crown, symbolizing the Wettin dynasty. Above the coat of arms there is a golden crown, decorated with jewels and pearls. The inscription in capital letters above shows that the goblet belonged to Frederick Augustus I, the King of Poland, the Grand Duke of Lithuania and the Prince‑elect of Saxony. Both in Poland and in Lithuania he used to be called Augustus II, and his particular physique and strength resulted in him being nicknamed Augustus the Strong. Other similar goblets are exhibited nearby.
The treasury exhibition was the last space of our visit during this audio guided tour. We hope that we have helped you to open the past at least a little bit. We invite you to visit the Palace of the Grand Dukes of Lithuania in the future and to have a closer individual look at an abundance of valuable exhibits that were not mentioned during this tour. Also, to get to know the unique Lituanistic iconographic material, visit exhibitions, participate in the museum’s events, excursions and educational activities! You can find more detailed information about the development of the Palace, the most valuable exhibits and events at our museum’s internet website www.valdovurumai.lt. We look forward to your return ‑ thank you for your visit and see you next time!
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